MINUTES OF PHILLIPS BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING Monday, February 17, 2020

- I. The Phillips Board of Education meeting was called to order by President Pesko at 6:00 pm in the 6-12 Learning Center. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.
- II. <u>Present</u>: Burkart, Fox, Houdek, Krog, Lind, Pesko, Rose, Willett, and Student Liaison. <u>Absent</u>: Halmstad. <u>Administration present</u>: Superintendent Morgan, Principals Hoogland and Scholz; Director of Pupil Services Lemke. <u>Others:</u> Staff, students, community members, and Price Co Review.
- III. President Pesko stated that public notice of the meeting was properly posted according to Wisconsin Statute 19.84(4). Notice was posted at all school-owned buildings, the School District of Phillips' website, and the Price County Review.
- IV. Public Participation The following people gave input to the Board on the school forest logging and contract item to be discussed later in the meeting: Ron Kendziera, Susan Jones, Mary Rohde, Tina Gilge read statement for Caroline Corbett, Connie Schoenborn, Tara Scholz, Brandi Smith, Jon Krause, Erik Olson, Dan Virnig, Justin Polacek, Dave Scholz read statement for Tim Popp, Bob Dural
- V. Administrative and Committee Reports
 - A. Dave Scholz PES Principal Report
 - 1. Students of the Month are Brianna Quinnell (4) and Noah Reinke (3)
 - 2. At the midyear point, grades 1, 2 and 3 are close to meeting the 80% grade level reading achievement gap reduction year-end goal. Kindergarten is only at 35% at the mid-year point. This group is developmentally young with 61% of the students having a spring or summer birthday and 55% economically disadvantaged. The staff will be monitoring their progress.
 - 3. Student-led conferences will be held Thursday and next Tuesday. A high parent turnout is expected.
 - B. Colin Hoogland PhMS/PHS Principal Report
 - 1. Students of the Month at PhMS are Calli Berwald (6), Chance Berwald (7), and Daelyn Dieman (8).
 - 2. Students of the Quarter at PHS are Cole Abraham (9) and Megan Schluter (11).
 - 3. The 58 students in the Class of 2020 are working to complete their graduation requirements. Five are working at NTC in the welding academy, four completed IEMT academy, five have completed or are working on CNA certification, seven are working at youth apprenticeships, eight are enrolled in AP English, four in AP chemistry, and eight in AP calculus. Fourteen students will be graduating as honor graduates earning a minimum 3.35 GPA.
 - 4. PHS Valedictorian is Trinity Pesko earning a 4.0 GPA while being active in many school and community activities. Trinity is the daughter of Jon and Sherry Pesko. Trinity is in the process of determining a school to attend and plans to pursue a major in theater arts.
 - 5. PHS Salutatorian is Jessica Roush earning a 3.979 GPA while being active in many school and community activities. Jessica is the daughter of Brian and Sheila Roush. Jessica plans to attend UW-LaCrosse and major in exercise and sport science in preparation to become a physical therapist.
 - 6. The Academic Excellence and Technical Excellence Scholarship recipients will be announced next month.
 - 7. A group of teachers from Phillips High School visited Cardinal Manufacturing at the Aleva-Strum High School. This class meets one class block per day for a year and works with local businesses. Students can apply to be a part of the manufacturing

- class during their junior and senior years. The Phillips technology and business department would like to pursue a similar vision at PHS using recently acquired fab lab equipment.
- 8. March 3rd the junior class will be taking the ACT exam. Grades 9 and 10 will be visiting local businesses that day and seniors will have a virtual school day.
- C. Vicki Lemke Pupil Services Director had no report.
- D. Rick Morgan Superintendent Report
 - 1. State Education Convention Report
 - a. Rick Morgan spent much time in the vendor exhibits discussing referendum related items (playground equipment, construction options, etc.). Attended sessions on District robotic program, finance, and governor's budget in addition to general sessions
 - b. Paula Houdek a lot of time was spent on delegate orientation and the delegate assembly, enjoyed several music performances, and attended onboarding new board members, school crisis response (Jayme Closs), communications (Baraboo incident), improving reading (Thorp), as well as general sessions.
 - c. Jon Pesko attended sessions on referendum support from community, optimizing Generation Z, FEMA grant dome building at Spencer School District, and general sessions.
 - 2. Referendum communications continue. Letters have been sent to municipality leaders and responses have started coming in to place Mr. Morgan on the agenda of their next meeting. Letters and Fact Sheets have been sent to local businesses for their waiting rooms/work rooms. Five presentation boards have been set throughout the district. A district-wide mass mailing will arrive in mailboxes at the end of February. Three reality radio slots have been scheduled to coincide with the mailing and two open houses.
 - Rick has been asked to be on the Education Accountability Committee, a DPI
 committee looking at revising the State Report Card. Majority of meetings will be
 held through Zoom and face-to-face meetings in Madison will have expenses
 reimbursed by the State.

E. Jessica Roush - Student Liaison Report

- The wrestling team is regional champions, along with many individual placings.
 Team sectionals are February 18th and individual sectionals are February 22nd.
 Girls basketball are Marawood Conference champions and Boys basketball are 2nd in conference. Sawyer Kirchmeyer broke the school record for three-point shots in a game with eight.
- 2. The Northwoods Global Ecology students from Phillips and Butternut will be going to Costa Rica April 9-17. On April 1, the AP English class will be going to the Orpheum Theatre in Minneapolis to see Anastasia.

F. Policy Committee Report

- 1. Policy #384 Therapy Dogs in School is still being developed.
- 2. A policy is being developed for proof of insurance requirement for mileage reimbursement.
- 3. Policy #164 Board Member Compensation and Expenses is presented for second reading tonight.

G. School Forest Committee Report

- 1. Approximately 28 community members, 18 committee members and three board members attended the meeting on February 4th.
- 2. A historical overview of the Worcester School Forest development from 2001 to present was given by Dave Scholz.
- 3. Joe Grapa (county forester) gave an update on the logging project at the Worcester School Forest and Rich Windmoeller (state forester) gave his support.

- Committee discussed the next steps in planning for the outdoor classroom building project. Elk River pavilion building plans were reviewed for possible blueprints for the building.
- 5. Community members were given the opportunity to make public comments.
- H. Facilities/Transportation Committee Report
 - 1. Facilities: Dave Berens reported that Separmatic will be testing pool chemicals and do trainings on chemical maintenance, laundry equipment will need to be replaced in the near future, some boiler pumps are being monitored for future service.
 - Transportation: Jason McMillan reported that the accident procedure was reviewed
 with the admin team and procedure packets reviewed and given to van and bus
 drivers, discussed student tracking on buses, discussed additional safety cameras,
 restroom facilities on a bus, and minor driver issues and practice sessions for
 substitutes.
- H. Business services committee met and discussed:
 - 1. The Board and CLA met to discuss the 2018-2019 audit.
 - 2. The 2020 logging project at the Worcester forest was discussed with community members and added to the agenda for Monday's regular board meeting.
 - 3. The underground storage tank liability insurance is due for renewal in March. Two quotes were received for \$8,560.33 and \$1,782.00 per year.
 - 4. EMC claims for the gym floor and heater coil break were discussed. Asbestos removal will be required for the basement area this summer.
 - 5. Updates were given on referendum activities. Tasks are on schedule.
 - 6. Items from the Facilities/Transportation meeting were reviewed.
 - 7. The regular meeting agenda was reviewed and five retirement requests are ready for the closed session.
 - 8. January bills were reviewed prior to the Board meeting.
- VI. Items for Discussion and Possible Action.
 - A. Motion (Fox/Houdek) to approve the Educational Options Report for 2020. Motion carried 8-0.
 - B. The annual Legislative meeting will be held on March 2, 2020 at the Medford Senior High building. Board members interested in attending should contact the district office.
 - C. Motion (Krog/Houdek) to approve the AP English class trip to the Orpheum Theater in Minneapolis on April 1, 2020 and the Northwoods Youth for Global Ecology trip to Costa Rica from April 9-17, 2020. Motion carried 8-0.
 - D. Following board discussion on the school forest logging plan, there was a motion (Krog/Burkart) to continue with the 2012 School Forest Management Plan timber harvest in 2020 and the logging contract to Future Woods. Motion carried 7-1 (Houdek)
- VII. Consent Items Motion (Willett/Burkart) to approve all consent items. Motion carried 8-0.
 - A. Approved minutes from January 20, 2020 Board meeting.
 - B. Approved personnel report renewing spring season coaches: Glenn Ericksen (assistant softball); Sara Socha (co-head track); Dana Janssen (assistant track); and Mark Fuhr (girls soccer).
 - C. Approved 2nd reading of Policy #164 Board Member Compensation and Expenses
 - D. Approved bills from January 2020 (#346921-347082 and wires) for a total of \$604,787.12.
- VIII. The next regular board meeting will be held on March 16, 2020. Items to consider for the agenda are virtual learning for snow days, scholarship announcements.
- IX. Motion (Houdek/Fox) to convene into executive session at the conclusion of the open session pursuant to:
 - A. WI Stat. Sec. 19.85(1)(c) for the purpose of considering employment, promotion, retirement, compensation or performance evaluation data of any public employee over

which the governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility.

2020 Retirement Requests
 Motion carried 8-0 with roll call vote at 8:12 p.m..

- X. The Board may reconvene into open session pursuant to WI Stat. Sec. 19.85(1), if necessary, to act on motions made during the executive session.
- XI. Motion (Houdek/Willett) to reconvene into open session at 9:30 p.m.. Motion carried.
- XII. Motion (Lind/Willett) to direct Superintendent Morgan to carry out the directives of the school board in regards to 2020 retirement requests for each of the five requests. Burkart-yes; Fox-yes; Houdek-yes; Krog-yes; Lind-yes; Pesko-yes; Rose-yes; Willett-yes Motion Carries 8-0.
- XII. Motion (Krog/Lind) to adjourn at 9:32 p.m.. Motion carried 8-0.

Respectfully submitted,

Tracie Burkart, Clerk Board of Education

THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF PHILLIPS

Price County Review P.O. Box 170 Phillips, Wisconsin 54555

APPROVED FOR PUBLICATION

Minutes of School Board Meeting February 17, 2020 6:00 PM

Tracie Burkart, Clerk Board of Education